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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) resolves an administrative penalty
proceeding commenced on September 29, 2012, by the filing of a Complaint and Notice of
Opportunity for a Hearing (Complaint) by the Complainant, the Director of the Caribbean
Environmental Compliance Division (CEPD) for the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) Region 2, against Respondent Pfizer Pharmaceuticals LLC (Pfizer or
Respondent), pursuant to Section 113(d), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), of the Clean Air Act (CAA or
Act), 42 US.C.§ 7401 et seq., and EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of
Permits (CROP), 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

In addition, this CAFO simultaneously commences and concludes an administrative
penalty proceeding brought by the Complainant against Respondent for violations discovered
after the Complaint was issued, pursuant to Section 113(d) of the CAA, and Rules 22.13(b) and

22.18(b) of the CROP.



The Consent Agreement is signed by the Complainant and Respondent, and the Final
Order is issdéd by the Reégion 2 Régional Administrator. As set forth in the “Jurisdictional
Allegations” section of the Consent Agreement, the Complainant is duly authorized to sign
consent agreements and the Regional Administrator is duly authorized to issue final orders.

CONSENT AGREEMENT

General Provisions

1. EPA has determined that Pfizer violated the CAA and its implementing
regulations at its plant located in State Road 2, Km. 58.2, Barceloneta, Puerto Rico (the Facility).
In general, the violations involve Respondent’s failure to comply with of Sections 112 and 114,
42 U.S.C. §§ 7412 and 42 U.S.C. §§ 7414 of the Act, and 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart H, the
“HON MACT” regulations (HON MACT or Subpart H).

2. The specific violations identified by EPA are set forth below in the section of the
Consent Agreement entitled “Conclusions of Law.” The Complainant and Respondent enter into
this Consent Agreement and propose the attached Final Order to resolve an administrative civil
penalty proceeding that was commenced by EPA’s Complaint, dated September 29, 2012 (herein
referred to in Conclusions of Law, Counts 1 - 5), and to simultaneously commence and conclude
an administrative penalty proceeding concerning those specific violations disclosed by Pfizer
(herein referred to in Conclusions of Law, Counts 6 - 8) , as contemplated by CROP 22.13(b)
and 22.18(a) - (b).

3. Therefore, for the purposes of this administrative penalty proceeding, and to avoid
the expense of protracted litigation, Respondent:

a. admits the jurisdictional allegations set forth in paragraphs 9-13 below in

the section of this Consent Agreement entitled “Jurisdictional
Allegations;”



b. neither admits nor denies the recitations set forth in the section of this
Consent Agreement entitled “Legal Background;”

& neither admits nor denies the findings of fact set forth in the section of his
Consent Agreement entitled “Findings of Fact;”

d. consents to the payment of the civil penalty specified in the section of this
Consent Agreement entitled “Settlement,” on the terms specified in that
section;

e. consents to the issuance of the attached Final Order; and

f. waives any right to contest the allegations set forth in the “Conclusions of

Law” section of this Consent Agreement and any right to appeal the
attached Final Order.

Jurisdictional Allegations

4. Section 113(d) of the CAA authorizes the EPA Administrator to issue an order
assessing civil administrative penalties against any person that has violated or is violating any
requirement or prohibition of subchapters I, III, IV-A, V or VI of the Act, or any requirement or
prohibition of any rule, order, waiver, permit or plan promulgated pursuant to any of those
subchapters, including but not limited to any regulation promulgated pursuant to Section 112 or
114 of the Act.

8 Section 302(e) of the CAA provides that whenever the term “person” is used in
the Act, the term includes an individual, corporation, partnership, association, state, municipality,
political subdivision of a State, and any agency, department, or instrumentality of the United
States and any officer, agent, or employee thereof.

6. Pursuant to EPA Delegation of Authority 7-6-A and EPA Region 2 Delegation of
Authority 7-6-A, the Administrator has delegated to the Complainant, the Director of the
Caribbean Environmental Protection Division, through the Region 2 Regional Administrator, the
authority to (a) make findings of violations, (b) issue CAA Section 113(d) administrative penalty

complaints, and (c¢) agree to settlements and sign consent agreements memorializing those

3



settlements, for CAA violations that occur in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the
Territory of the U.S. Virgin Islands.

T Pursuant to EPA Delegation of Authority 7-6-C, the Administrator has delegated
to the Region 2 Regional Administrator the authority to execute CAA Section 113(d) Final
Orders.

8. As contemplated by Section 113(d), the Administrator and the Attorney General,
through their respective delagatees, have jointly determined that this matter is appropriate for an
administrative penalty proceeding. Specifically, on September 24, 2012, and on April 8, 2014,
the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) granted EPA’s requests for waivers of the CAA
Section 113(d) time and penalty limitations on EPA’s authority to initiate administrétive penalty
actions in this matter.

9., Respondent is a “person” within the meaning of Section 302(e) of the Act.

10. Respondent is an “owner or operator” of the Facility, as that term is used in
Section 112(a)(9) of the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.

11.  The Facility is a “stationary source,” as that term is used Section 112(a)(3) of the
Actand 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.

12.  The Facility is an “area source” of HAPs, as that term is used in Section 112(a)(2)
of the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.

13 The Facility is subject to the HON MACT.



Legal Background

EPA’s Authority to Impose Civil Penalties for CAA Violations

14. Section 302(e) of the CAA provides that whenever the term “person” is used in
the Act, the term includes an individual, corporation, partnership, association, State; municipality,
political subdivision of a State, and any agency, department, or instrumentality of the United
States and any officer, agent, or employee thereof.

15, Section 113(d) of the CAA authorizes the EPA Administrator to assess a civil
administrative penalty against any person who has violated the Act or any regulation
promulgated pursuant to titles I, ITI, IV, V and VI of the Act, including but not limited to any
regulation promulgated pursuant to Sections 111, 112 and/or 114 of the Act.

CAA Section 112

16. Section 112 of the Act requires the EPA Administrator to: (i) publish a list of
hazardous air pollutants (HAPs), (i1) publish a list of categories and subcategories of major and
area sources of those HAPs, and (iii) promulgate regulations establishing emission standards for
each such category and subcategory.

17.  Emissions standards promulgated pursuant to Section 112 are commonly known
as National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, or NESHAPs. NESHAPs
promulgated under the CAA as it existed prior to the 1990 CAA amendments are set forth in 40
C.F.R. Part 61. NESHAPs promulgated under the CAA as amended in 1990 are set forth in 40
| C.F.R. Part 63. Part 63 NESHAPs are sometimes known as MACT standards, because Section
112(d) of the CAA, as amended in 1990, directs EPA to promulgate emissions standards based

on the maximum achievable control technology (MACT).



18. Section 112(a) of the Act contains definitions relevant to Section 112. More

specifically:

d.

Section 112(a)(1) of the Act defines “major source” as any stationary
source or group of stationary sources located within a contiguous area and
under common control that emits or has the potential to emit considering
controls, in the aggregate 10 tons per year or more of any hazardous air
pollutant or 25 tons per year or more of any combination of hazardous air
pollutants.

Section 112(a)(2) of the Act defines “area source” as any stationary source
of hazardous air pollutants that is not a major source.”

Section 112(a)(3) of the Act defines “stationary source” as a any building,
structure, facility or installation which emits or may emit any air pollutant.

Section 112(a)(9) defines “owner or operator” as any person who owns,
leases, operates, controls or supervises a stationary source.

19. Section 112(1)(3)(A) of the Act prohibits the operation of a source in violation of

any emissions standard, limitation or regulation issued pursuant to Section 112, and directs the

Administrator to set a compliance deadline for existing sources that is no more than 3 years after

the effective date of the standard.

CAA Section 114

20. Section 114 of the CAA authorizes the EPA Administrator to require testing,

monitoring, record-keeping, and reporting of information, to enable him or her to carry out any

provision of the Act (except certain provisions in subchapter II) and to assess compliance with,

among other requirements, any regulations promulgated under Sections 111 and 112 of the Act.

The Part 63 General Provisions — 40 C.F.R. §8 63.1-63.16

21. On March 16, 1994, pursuant to Sections 112 and 114 of the Act, EPA

promulgated 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart A (the Part 63 General Provisions).

22 The Part 63 General Provisions set forth general definitions, procedures and

requirements that apply to every Part 63 NESHAP, unless the individual NESHAP in question
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provides differently. More specifically, the owners and operators of sources subject to an
individual Part 63 NESHAP are subject to the portions of the general provisions that are
expressly included in that individual Part 63 NESHAP. See 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.1(a)(4) (“Each
relevant standard in this part 63 must identify explicitly whether each provision in this Subpart A
is or is not included in such relevant standard.”) and (¢)(1) (“If a relevant standard has been
established under this Part, the owner or operator of an affected source must comply with the
provisions of that standard and this Subpart as provided in paragraph (a)(4) of this Section™).

23, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.1(b), the provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 63 apply to the
owner or operator of any stationary source that (i) emits or has the potential to emit any HAP
listed in or pursuant to Section 112(b) of the Act, and (ii) is subject to any standard, limitation,
prohibition, or other federally enforceable requirement established pursuant to Part 63.

24, Methylene chloride (MeClz) is listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 63 as a HAP.

25. 40 C.F.R. § 63.2 defines “affected source,” as the collection of equipment,
activities, or both within a single contiguous area and under common control that is included in a
Section 112(c) source category or subcategory for which a Section 112(d) standard or other
relevant standard is established pursuant to Section 112 of the Act.

26. 40 C.F.R. § 63.2 defines “existing source” as any affected source that is not a new
source.

27 40 C.F.R. § 63.2 defines “owner or operator” as any person who owns, leases,
operates, controls, or supervises a stationary source.

28. 40 C.F.R. § 63.6(c)(1) provides that after the effective date of Part 63 NESHAP,
the owners and operators of existing sources subject to that NESHAP must comply with the

NESHAP by the compliance date established in the applicable Subpart(s) of 40 C.F.R. Part 63.



Subpart H, the HON MACT - 40 C.F.R. §¢ 63.160-63.183

29.  On April 22, 1994, pursuant to Sections 112 and 114 of the Act, EPA
promulgated 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart I, §§ 63.160 - 63.183, the National Emission Standards
for Organic Hazardous Air Pollutants for Equipment Leaks (HON MACT or Subpart H),

59 Fed. Reg. 19,568 (April 22, 1994).

30 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63. 160(51), the provisions of Subpart H apply to pumps,
compressors, agitators, pressure relief devices, sampling connection systems, open-ended valves
or lines, valves, connectors, surge control vessels, bottoms receivers, instrumentation systems,
and control devices or closed vent systems required by Subpart H that are intended to operate in
organic HAP service 300 hours or more during the calendar year within a source subject to the
provisions of a specific Subpart in 40 C.F.R. Part 63 that references Subpart H.

31. 7 Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.160(b)(1), after the compliance date for a process unit
to which Subpart H and the provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 60 apply, the unit will be required to
comply only with the provisions of Subpart H.

32. Pursuant to 40 C.IF.R. § 63.160(c), if a facility has equipment to which Subpart H
does not apply, but which is subject to a standard identified in § 63.160(c)(1), (c)(2), or (c)(3),
the owner or operator may elect to apply Subpart H to all such equipment in the process unit. If
the owner or operator elects this method of compliance, all VOC in such equipment shall be
considered, for purposes of applicability and compliance with Subpart H, as if it were organic
HAP. Compliance with the provisions of Subpart H, in the manner described in this paragraph,

shall be deemed to constitute compliance with the standards identified in 40 C.F.R. §

63.160(c)(1), (c)(2), or ()(3).



33. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.162(a), compliance with Subpart H will be determined
by review of the records required by § 63.181 and the reports required by § 63.182 of Subpart H,
review of performance test results, and by inspections.

34, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.163(b)(1), the owner or operator of a process unit
-subj ect to Subpart H shall monitor each pump monthly to detect leaks by the method specified in
§ 63.180(b) of Subpart H and shall comply with the requirements of § 63.163(a) through (d),
except as provided in § 63.162(b) of Subpart H and § 63.163(e)-(j). '

35, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.163(¢)(1), when a leak at the valves is detected, it shall
be repaired as soon as practicable, but not later than 15 calendar days after it is detected, except
as provided in § 63.163(c)(3) or § 63.171 of Subpart H.

36.  Pursuant to 40 CFR § 63.163(c)(2), a first attempt at repair for valves that.are
either in gas service or in light liquid service shall be made no later than 5 calendar days after the
leak is detected.

| 37. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.167(a)(1), each open-ended valve or line shall be
equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve, except as provided in
§ 63.162(b) of Subpart H and paragraphs (d) and (e) of § 63.167.

38. Pursuant to 40 C.I'.R § 63.167(a)(1), each open-ended valve or line shall be
equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve, except as provided in
§ 63.162(b) and § 63.167(d) and (e) of Subpart H.

39. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.167(a)(2), the cap, blind flange, plug, or second valve
shall seal the open end at all times except dﬁring operations requiring process fluid flow through

the open-ended valve or line, or during maintenance or repair.



40, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.168(b), the owner or operator of a source subject to
Subpart H shall monitor all valves, except as provided in § 63.162(b) of Subpart H and
paragraphs (h) and (i) of § 63.168; at the intervals specified in § 63.168(c) and (d) and shall
comply with all other provisions of § 63.168, except as provided in § 63.171, § 63.177, § 63.178,
and § 63.179 of Subpart H.

41. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.168(c), in Phases I and II, each valve shall be
monitored quarterly.

42, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.168(f)(1), when a leak at a valve that is in light liquid
service is detected, it shall be repaired as soon as practicable, but no later than 15 calendar days
after the leak is detected, except as provided in § 63.171 of Subpart H.

43. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.180(a), each owner or operator subject to the
provisions of Subpart H shall comply with the test methods and procedures requirements
provided in § 63.180.

44, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.180(b)(1), monitoring, as required by Subpart H sﬁall
comply with Method 21 of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix A (Method 21).

45, Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.180(b)(2)(1), except as provided forin
§ 63.180(b)(2)(ii), the detection instrument shall meet the performance criteria of Method 21,
except the instrument response factor criteria in Section 3.1.2(a) of Method 21 shall be for the
average composition of the process fluid not each individual VOC in the stream. For process
streams that contain nitrogen, water, air, or other inerts which are not organic HAPs or VOCs,
the average stream response factor may be calculated on an inert-free basis. The response factor

may be determined at any concentration for which monitoring for leaks will be conducted.
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46. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.180(b)(3), the instrument shall be calibrated before use
on cach day of its use by the procedures specified in Method 21.

47. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R § 63.181(a), an owner or operator of more than one process
unit subject to the provisions of Subpart H may comply with the recordkeeping requirements for
these process units in one recordkeeping system if the system identifies each record by process
unit and the program being implemented (e.g., quarterly monitoring, quality improvement) for
each type of equipment. All records and information required by § 63.181 shall be maintained in
a manner that can be readily accessed at the plant site. This could include physically locating the
records at the plant site or accessing the records from a central location by computer at the plant
site.

48. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.182(d), the owner or operator of a source subject to
Subpart H shall submit Periodic Reports.

49. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.182(d)(xiv), the periodic reports shall contain the
results of all monitoring to show compliance with §§ 63.164(i), 63.165(a), and 63.172(f) of
Subpart H conducted within the semiannual reporting period.

Subpart I National Emission Siandards for Organic HAPs for Certain Processes Subject to the
Negotiated Regulation for Equipment Leaks - 40 C.F.R. §$ 6.190-63.193

50. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.192(a)(1), the owner or operator of a source subject to
Subpart I shall comply with the requirements of Subpart H of this Part for the processes and
designated organic HAP's listed in § 63.190(b) of this Subpart.

5., Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 63.192(a)(2), the owner or operator of a pharmaceutical
production process subject to Subpart I may define a proéess unit as a set of operations, within a
source, producing a product, as all operations collocated within a building or structure or as all

affected operations at the source.
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Findings of Fact

S2. The factual findings set forth below are the result of an investigation conducted
by EPA Region 2 staff pursuant to Section 114 of the CAA.

53. Respondent is a for profit corporation duly formed under the laws of Delaware as
a limited liability company on October, 13, 1999.

54, Respondent operates a pharmaceutical manufacturing plant that is defined as a
synthetic organic manufacturing industry.

53 Respondent operates a pharmaceutical process that uses methylene chloride as a
reactant in its chemical manufacturing processing unit.

56, Methylene chloride is classified as a HAP, as defined by Section 112(b) of the
Act.

. Respondent requested from the Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board (EQB)
a restricted synthetic minor air permit to be reclassified from major source to an area source.

58. The Facility’s State Operating Permit # PFE-09-0203-0146-1-11-O indicates that
the Facility’s total annual HAPs emissions or potential emissions do not exceed 10 tons per year
(tpy) of any HAP or 25 tpy of combined HAPs.

59. The State Operating Permit indicates that the Facility must comply with 40 C.F.R.
Part 63, Subpart H.

60. On March 4 and 5, 2010, EPA and the EQB conducted a HON MACT Leak
Detection and Repair (LDAR) inspection (EPA Inspection) at the Facility.

61.  During the EPA Inspection, Pfizer informed EPA that the Facility is subject to the

HON MACT due to the use of methylene chloride in several of its manufacturing batch
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processes. During the EPA Inspection, Pfizer informed EPA that methylene chloride is the only
HAP used at the Facility that is regulated under the HON MACT.

62. During the EPA Inspection, Pfizer informed EPA that the Facility is a synthetic
minor source, since it limited its potential to emit HAPs to below 10 tpy of any single HAP or 25
tpy of any combination of HAPs threshold in October 2002.

63. During the EPA Inspection, Pfizer informed EPA that the Facility was having
difficulties retrieving its historic LDAR monitoring data. Raw data requested by EPA was not
able to be extracted from Respondent’s database.

64. During the EPA Inspection, available leak records, work orders and leak repairs
from 2005 through 2009 were reviewed.

65. During the EPA Inspection, Respondent confirmed that as a routine instrument
calibration at the Facility it has always conducted a Method 21 bump calibration instead of a
Method 21 equipment calibration.

66. During the EPA Inspection, Respondent informed that the Facility has 7,088
components.

67. During the EPA Inspection, Respondent informed that its LDAR technicians
conduct LDAR evaluations daily on approximately 200 components at the Facility.

68.  During the EPA Inspection, EPA also confirmed that Respondent has never
conducted a response time test before placing the monitoring instrument into service.

69. During the EPA Inspection, EPA performed side by side monitoring with Pfizer
LDAR technicians at 341 components subject to the Facility’s HON MACT LDAR Program

(EPA Monitoring Review).
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70.  During the EPA Monitoring Review, EPA found four leaks at certain flanges,
plugs and valves components.

7. During EPA Monitoring Review, EPA also found and took pictures of three (3)
open-ended lines (OELSs). These OELs were not equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug or
second valve.

72. By letter dated March 17, 2010, Respondent informed EPA that: (1) all leaks
found during the EPA Inspection were repaired and corrected; (2) OELs were immediately
capped during the EPA Inspection; (3) that Respondent implemented the procedures as required
in EPA Method 21 to include the response time determination; (4) that Respondent implemented
the practice to conduct daily calibrations during all LDAR monitoring activities.

73. On September 30, 2010, EPA filed an Administrative Compliance Order
(Compliance Order) against Respondent for violations of 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart H.

74. On January 13, 2011, EPA sent a letter to Respondent in order to assess its
compliance with the provisions of Subpart H.

75. On January 21, 2011, Respondent submitted its Response to EPA’s January 13,
2011 letter providing the information requested.

76. EPA conducted a review of the information obtained during, and subsequent to,
the EPA Inspection, including the information and documents Respondent submitted with its
March 17, 2010 and January 21, 2011 letters and concluded that Respondent corrected the

violations as stated in the Compliance Order.
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Pfizer’s disclosure of additional violations

77 On October 28 and November 28, 2011, Pfizer sent letters to EPA’s Division of
Enforcement and Compliance Assistance (DECA) stating its intention to disclose potential
violations at the Facility.

78. On September 29, 2012, EPA filed the Complaint against Pfizer for the violations
alleged in the Compliance Order.

79. On November 29, 2012, EPA met with Pfizer to discuss the Complaint. During
the meeting, Pfizer referred to the issues raised in the letters sent to DECA on October 28 and
November 28, 2011.

80. During the November 29, 2012 meeting, Pfizer stated that it was conducting an
internal investigation pertaining to the issues raised in its letters, in order to submit a complete
report to EPA.

81. On April 29, 2013, Pfizer representatives met with EPA to discuss the results of
its internal investigation.

82. According to Pfizer, an exhaustive internal investigation was conducted in order‘
to further scrutinize the preliminary findings disclosed by Respondent in its letters sent to DECA
on October 28 and November 28, 2011.

83. During the April 29, 2013 meeting, EPA requested Pfizer to submit a breakdown
of all affected equipment that had been identified as being subject to the HON MACT LDAR
program and to submit the revised semiannual reports related to the activities performed since

the identification of such equipment.

15



84, On May 23, 2013, Pfizer submitted the revised semiannual reports for the affected
equipment it had identified to cover the period from April 2008 to April 2011, as established by
40 C.F.R. § 63.182(a).

85. EPA conducted an analysis of the revised semiannual reports. The analysis
revealed that Pfizer failed to identify 1,274 components (1,040 connectors, 225 valves, 4
agitators and 5 pumps as all the equipment been identified in the new pharmaceutical process)
that needed to be included in the Facility’s LDAR Program.

86. The analysis also revealed that some of the equipment previously reported as
subject to the HON MACT had been removed from the HON MACT components list because
they were not using methylene chloride and/or were in service for less than 300 hours as
established by 40 C.F.R. § 63.162(c).

87. The analysis also revealed that Respondent had centralized the data required for
all affected components subject to Subpart H and had complied with LDAR requirements, as
established in 40 C.F.R. § 63.181.

88.  The Region has concluded that Pfizer is now in compliance with the HON MACT

regulations.

Conclusions of Law

89. Based on the Findings of Fact set forth above, EPA reaches the following
Conclusions of Law:

General Conclusions

90.  Respondent is a person within the meaning of Section 302(e) of the Act.

91.  Respondent is the owner and/or operator of the Facility within the meaning of

Section 112(a)(9) of the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.
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92. The Facility is a stationary source as that term is used Section 112(a)(3) of the Act

and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.

93. The Facility is an arca source of HAPs within the meaning of Section 112(a)(2) of

the Act and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2.

94, | The Facility operates in organic HAP service 300 hours or more during the
calendar year within a source subject to the provisions of a specific Sﬁbpart in 40 CFR Part 63
that references Subpart H, and contains pumps, compressors, agitators, pressure relief devices,
sampling connection systems, open-ended valves or lines, valves, connectors, surge control
vessels, bottoms receivers, instrumentation systems, and control devices or closed vent systems.

Therefore, the Facility is subject to Subpart H.

Snecific Violations pertaining to the Administrative Complaini

Count 1

93. During the EPA inspection, EPA observed that the OEL identified as S-HV-

14897 was not equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve.

96. Respondent’s failure to equip the OEL identified as S-HV-14597 with a cap,

blind flange, plug, or a second valve is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1).

97. A violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1) is a violation of Section 112 and 114 of

the Act.

Count 2
98. During the EPA Inspection, EPA observed that the OEL identified as G-FL-

012S76-003 was not equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve.
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99. Respondent’s failure to equip the OEL identified as G-FL-012S76-003 with a cap,

blind flange. plug, or a second valve is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1).

100. A violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1) is a violation of Section 112 and 114 of

the Act.

Count 3

101.  During the EPA Inspection, EPA observed that the OEL identified as TS-HV-
111B04 was not equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or a second valve.

102. Respondent’s failure to equip the OEL identified as TS-HV-111B04 with a cap,

blind flange, plug, or a second valve is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1).

103. A violation of Subpart H at 40 C.F.R. § 63.167(a)(1) is a violation of Section 112

and 114 of the Act.

Count 4
104.  During the EPA Inspection, Respondent stated that it had never conducted a

response time test on the Total Volatile Analyzer, model TVA 1000s monitoring instrument.

105. By letter dated March 17, 2010, Respondent advised EPA that it had implemented

at the Facility procedures to include the response time determination as required in Method 21.

106. Respondent’s failure to conduct a response time test on the Total Volatile

Analyzer, model TVA 1000s monitoring instrument is a violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.180(b)(1).

107. A violation of 40 C.F.R. § 63.180(b)(2) is a violation of Section 112 and 114 of

the Act.
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